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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ecu International (Asia) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Ecu International (Asia) Private
Limited(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to
as “Ind AS Financial Statements®).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (¢
the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, its profit
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date which are designed for inclusion in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Alicargo
Logistics Limited as at 31 March 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilitics under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Managemecnat’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Comparty or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statemcnts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

»  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has




SHAPARIA MEHTA & ASSOCIATES LLP Continuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to ceasc 10 conlinue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the inteinal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(¢) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company, or
» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:
» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or
« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties;
and
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(c) Based on such audit proccdures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (h)(iv)(a) and (b} contain any material mis-statement.

(v) The Comgpany has not declared or paid-any dividend during the year.

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLI
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 112350W/ W-100051)

L

Sanjiv Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 034950
Mumbai, 23" May, 2023
UDIN: 23034950BGUYDM1709
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors® Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023, we report that:

(i) (1) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation ¢ T'roperty, Plant and Equipment. '

(B) The Company is maiwlaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has regular programme of physical verification of fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified annually. In accordance with this programme, all fixed assets were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed during the period under
audit. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company holds no immovable property, accordingly reporting under this clause of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or
both during the year.

(e) As per the information and explanation provided to us by the Company, the Company
does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made there under, hence the reporting under this clause of the order is
not applicabie to the Company.

(ii) (a) The Company is a service Company dces not hold any physical inventories at the end of
the year, accordingly reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has no outstanding working capital loans from banks or financial
institutions at any point of time during the year, hence the reporting under this clause of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

(iiiy  During the year, the Company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, hence the reporting
under this clause of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not provided any loan, guarantees,
security or made any investment where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable. Consequently, the reporting under this clause of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public so as to require any compliance of the
directives of Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of section 73 or 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013. As explained to us, the Company has not received any order passed by the
Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or any court or other forum.
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According to the information and explanation given to us, maintenance of cost records in not
applicable to the Company. Hence reporiing under this clause of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is normally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty and
customs, duly of excise, value added tax, cess and any other applicable statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities though there are slight delays in few cases. As explained to us, the
Company has payable which is outstanding for more than 6 months from the date it has
become due, details of which are provided as under:

Continuation Sheet

Nature of | Nature of | Amount Period for which | Due date Date of

Statue Dues Tovolved | the amount payment
relates of payment :

Provident | Provident 16,774 September, 2021 | 15" October, 2021 Unpaid

Fund Act, | fund payable

1952

Provident | Provident 1,44,642 April, 2022 | 15" May, 2022 Unpaid

Fund Act, | fund payable

1952

Provident | Provident 1,41,316 May, 2022 | 15% June, 2022 Unpaid

Fund Act, | fund payable

1952

Provident | Provident 1,89,571 June, 2022 | 15® July, 2022 Unpaid

Fund Act, | fund payalie

1952

Provident | Provident 31,968 July, 2022 | 15™ August, 2022 Unpaid

Fund Act, | fund payablc

1952

Provident | Provident 23,996 August, 2022 | 15" September, | Unpaid

Fund Act, | fund payable 2022

1952

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the statutory dues referred to in
the sub-clause (a) are not involved in any dispute with the concerned department or
authorities.

There are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), hence accordingly, the reporting under this clause of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial
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(b) The Cempany has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or {inancial institution
or any other lender.

(¢) The Company has not taken any term loans {rom banks or financial institutions during the
year, hence repoiiing under this ciause of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The company not raised any funds on short term basis which have been utilized for long
term purposes.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (n) The Coirpany has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under this clanse of
the order is not applicable to the Company.

(bYThe company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the truc and fair
view of the financial statements and as per tie information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the period under audit.

{b) No report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{(c) We have not come across any whistle blower complaints received during the year from the
Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as defined under section 406 of the Companies Act,
2013, Accordingly, reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to constitute an audit committee, accordingly provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. All transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 during the period under
audit. The Company has complied with the requirement of disclosing the details of all the
related parties in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is
not required to appoint an internal auditor as per provisions of Section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Hence the reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xv)  On tae basis of information and explapation given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transacticns wiih directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the
reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not a Non-Banking Financial Company and accordingly it’s not
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India, hence reporting under this clause of the order is not applicable to
the Commpany.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report under this clause of the order is net applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losszs in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year under audit.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a peried of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of he audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all Habilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanation given to us, provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to ‘Corporate Social Responsibility’ is not applicable to the
Company. Hence reporting under the sub-clauses of the order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xxi) According to the information and explacation given to us, the Company does not have
subsidiaries or associatc comparies and is not required to prepare consolidated financial
statemerits. Accbraingly, clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LIP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 112350W/ W-100051)

Sanjiv Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 034950
Mumbai, 237 May, 2023
UDIN: 23034950BGUYDM1709
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Annexure - B to the Indcependent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Finanzial Centrols Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the inteinal firancial controls over financial reporting of Ecu International
(Asia) Private Limited (“the Co:npary™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statemeuts of the Company for the year ended and as at on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Fiuanciai Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘JCAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policics, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an.opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed undei scction 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal {inancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over {inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements
5. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extern es in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles. A company's internal financial conircl over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the mairtenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statcments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timnely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets tnat could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis over Financial Reporting

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management ovérride of controls, material
misstatements due to crror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financizl controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal {inancial contro! over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating cffectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Shaparia Mchta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 112350W/ W-100051)

Sanjiv Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 034950
Mumbai, 23" May, 2023
UDIN: 23034950BGUYDM1709




Ecu International (Asia) Put. Lid
Balance sheet as at 31 March 202
{Amount in )

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment {net}
Finance lease receivable

Other intangible assets

Financial assets
Investments
Gther financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-gurrent tax assets (net)
Other nen-current assets

Total - Non-current assets

Current assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Leans
Other financial assets
Contract Assets
Other current assets

Total - Current assets
Total Assets

[Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total Equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liability

Net empfoyee defined benefit liabilities

Total - Nan-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial lTabilities
Lease liability
Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises;
b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Other payables
Net employee defined benefit liabilities
Other current liahilities
Current tax liahilities (net)

Tatal - Current lfabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies
Motes to the financial statements

The notes referred to above are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP

ICAl firm registration No. 112350W,/W-200051
Chartered Accountants

Sanjiv Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 034950

Date: 23 May 2023

3

Notes

N

4.1
4.2
13(b)
13(a)
5A

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
4.2

5A

10

12

11
13b

2-30

31 March 2023 _ 31 March 2022
93,70,253 55,08,382
1,01,55,552 14,50,804
88,453 1,73,915

10 10

43,99,048 43,84,764
42,03,633 31,50,554
16,88,074 14,97,884

3,19,358 =
3,02,24,482 1,66,66,314
50,92,845 48,34,180
17,56,57,162 3,60,48,349
69,74,040 16,73,31,922
15,17,964 59,27,012
13,06,36,127 3,39,07,670
9,51,42,362 2,32,27,630
41,50,20,501 21,22,26,764
44,52,44,982 22,88,93,078
5,23,410 5,23,410
7,31,43,825 4,24,37,227
7,36,67,235 4,29,60,637
62,26,292 -

1,73,91,469 1,78,78,528
2,36,17,761 1,78,78,528
42,17,070 16,25,07%
6,16,22,115 1,68,31,830
3,86,22,302 2,76,82,040
27,88,463 21,15,138
24,07,10,036 11,57,99,833
34,79,59,986 16,80,53,312
44,52,44,982 22,88,53,078

For and on behalf of Board of directors of
ational (Asia} Pvt. Ltd.
2300MH2005PTC155205

Ecu Int

Cla;
s

i

Adarst] Hegde

Directer
DIN NJ

2 :00035040

Date: 23 May 2023

R =

Ravi Jakhar
Director
DiN No : 02188690

B



Ecu International {Asia} Pvt. Ltd.

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in X)

Notes

Continuing Operations

Income

Revenue from operations 14
Other incame 15
Total income

Expenses

Employee benefit expense 16
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 17
Finance costs 18
Other expenses 19
Total expenses

Profit hefore tax

Exceptional items 20
Profit before tax after exceptional item
Tax expense:
Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred tax (credit) /charge
Total tax expense

Profit for the year from Continuing Operation (i)

Profit for the year (A)

Other Comprehensive Income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Re-measurement gain/{losses) on defined benefit plans 21
Income tax effect
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (B)

Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A) + (B)

Earnings per equity share {(nominal value of Rs 10 each) 22

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 2-30

The notes referred to above are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP

[CAl firm registration No. 112350W/W-100051

Chartered Accountants CINNo :

Sanjiv Mehta AdarshiHegde
Partner Directgr
Membership No. 034950 DiIN Ng :00035040

Date: 23 May 2023 Date: 23 May 2023

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

For and on behalf of Board of directors of
Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
2300MH2005PTC155205

34,41,54,524 22,17,08,433
23,65,799 20,34,379
34,65,20,323 22,37,42,812
29,96,70,664 18,86,06,561
75,48,990 61,49,884
9,74,879 6,32,501
28,08,586 1,59,39,396
31,10,03,120 21,13,28,342
3,55,17,203 1,24,14,470

{78,30,660) =
4,33,47,863 1,24,14,470
1,12,33,116 36,51,895
1,91,330 {27,857}
{10,53,079} {14,74,137)
1,03,71,367 21,49,901
3,29,76,496 1,02,64,569
3,29,76,496 1,02,64,569
(22,69,898) (37,61,586)
(22,69,898) (37,61,586)
{22,69,898) (37,61,586)
3,07,06,598 65,02,983
630.03 196.11

'ﬁa khar
Director

DIN No : 02188690

_ Bl



Ecu Internattanal {Asla) Put. Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 3% March 2023

QOperating activities
Profit before tax frorm continuing operations

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cosh flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangibfe assets
Profit on sale of tnvestments
Fair value {gain) / loss on financial tnstruments
Bad debts/advances writtan off
Finance costs
Notional intarest income on financial instrument
Interest income on tax refund
Interest on kean given to Employee
Interest on Fixed Deposits

Working capital adjustments:
Decrease [ (increase) in trade recsivables
Decrease / (increase] in long term and short term leans and advances
Decrease / (increase) in unbilled revanue
Decrease / (Tncrease) in other current and non current assets
{Dacraase)/f Increase in trade payables, other current and non current liabifities
and provisions
Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid (including TDS) {net)
Net cash flows from operating activities {A)

Investing activities

Proceeds fram sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment. (including CWIP)
Proceeds frem sale of current Investments (net)

Advance (Given} / Received back

Realisation from $ale of investments - Other than Subsidiaries
Purchase of additional stake in subsidlaries from Minarity
Investment in mufua! funds (net)

Dividend racaived

Rent received

Purchase consideration paid

tnterest income received

Net cash flows from / {used in} investing activities {B]

Financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term karrowings

Proceeds from short term borrowlngs

Repayment af short term borrowings

Bank averdraft {repaid} / taken (net)

Payment of dividend to minarity

Bills of exchange [repaid) [net)

Finance Lease Cbligation {Ind AS 116)

Interest paid

Net cash flows from / {used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase / {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C)
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents (refer note. 8.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the and {refer note, 6.3}

As per our report of even date attached
For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP

|CAI firm registration No. 112350W/W-100051 -
Chartered Accauntants 2 * Ag e

Sanjiv Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 034950

Date: 23 May 2023

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

4,33,47,863 1,24,14,470
4,33,47,863 1,24,14,470
74,63,527 59,89,203%
85,463 1,60,681
(5,61,479) -
4,02,815 {1,55,926)
= 38,822
9,74,879 6,32,501
{2,32,349) (2,86,948)
{67,962) -
{1,743) -
{4,12,157) {6,507)
(13,87,08,813} (2,29,12,705)
41,59,593 {57,39,337)
{9,67,28,457} {2,64,19,537)
{7.22,34,090} 17,53,458
17,53,45,389 14,76,87,553
{7,72,68,022) 11,31,55,728
{1,16,14,636) {54,85,093)
{8,88,82,659) 10,76,70,635
(69,72,979) (22,89,782)
(0} (0]
4,12,157 6,507
165,60,821) {22,33,275)
(49,64,400) {49,64,400)
{43,64,400) {49,64,400}
{10,04,07,382) 10,04,22,960
10,73,81,922 69,58,962
69,74,040 10,73,81,972

For and on behalf of Beard of directors of
Ecu International {Asla) Pvt. Ltd.

Adarsh Hegde
Director
DIN Nb :00035040

Date: 23 May 2023

CIN No: 300MH2005PTC155205

A"

Ravi Jakhar
Director
DIN No : 02188690




Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amount in %)

{A) Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. Amount

At 31 March 2021 52,341 5,23,410
Addition - -
At 31 March 2022 52,341 523,410
Addition = =
At 31 March 2023 52,341 5,23,410
{B) Other Equity:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Reserves & Surplus
Balance in Statement of

Particulars Total equity
ocl Profit and Loss

As at 31st March 2022 {59,49,716) 4,83,87,091 4,24,37,227
Net Profit for the period = 3,29,76,496 3,29,76,49%
COther comprehensive income {22,69,898) - (22,69,898)
Total comprehensive income (82,19,614) 8,13,63,587 7,31,43,825
As at 31 March 2023 (82,19,614) 8,13,63,587 7,31,43,825
As at 31st March 2021 {21,88,130) 3,81,22,521 3,55,34,244
Net Profit for the period - 1,02,64,569 1,02,64,569
Other comprehensive inecome {37,61,586) - {37,61,586}
Total comprehensive income {59,45,716) 4,83,87,091 4,24,37,227
As at 31 March 2022 {59,49,716) 4,83,87,091 4,24,37,227

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of Board of directors of

For Shaparia Mehta & Associates LLP Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
ICAI firm registration Na. 112350W,/W-100051 CIN 300MH2005PTC155205
Chartered Accountanis
; \ fan A
f/ - -\.
Sanjiv Mehta l ; MUMBAI i I\ AdarshiHegde RS Jakhar
Partner ‘\_. 2N / Directgr Director
Membership No. 034950 ’ N » DIN Ng :00035040 DIN No : 02188690
Ny,
Date: 23 May 2023 ; = Date: 23 May 2023
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1.2

Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(the ‘Ind AS"} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2015 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’} and subsequent amendments thereof.

{b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the certain financial assets and
ligbilities measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which have been measured
at fair value or revalued amount. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange of goods or services. Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liahility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and [iabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

Itis due to he settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as hon-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its eperating cycle.

Foreign currencies:

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the functional currency.

Transaction and balances




Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at its functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Fair value measurement

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company uses assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The method used to determine the fair value includes
Discounted Cash Flow analysis, available quoted market price and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value
result in general approximation of fair value and such value may never be actually realized. For all other financial
instruments, the carrying amount approximates Fair Value due to the short maturity of those instruments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of
GST.

Others:

Reimbursement of cost is netted off with the relevant expenses incurred in pre GST regime and in post GST regime
the same has been recognised as part of revenue under the head business support charges.

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established by the balance sheet date.

Contract balances
Contract balances include trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities.
¢ Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivables are
separately disclosed in the financial statements.

e (Contract assets

Contract asset includes the costs deferred for multimodal transport operations relating to export freight &
origin activities and Container freight stations operations relating to import handling and transport
activities where the Company’s performance obligation is yet to be completed.

Additionally, a contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

*  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract Hability is recognised when the payment
is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier}. Contx:act liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract. v




B

Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Taxes
Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity}. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in GCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liahilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabte profit will be available against which
the temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probahble that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or directly in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing cost relating to acquisition of tangible assets which
take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the
period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component / part of the asset separately, if the component /
part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from
that of the remaining asset.

Depreciation

The Company provides depreciation on propery, plant and equipment using the Straight Line Method, based on the
useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful
lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The management has estimated
the useful lives of all its tangible assets as per the useful life specified in Part ‘C’ of Schedule Il to the Act.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on the tangible assets:

Category Useful lives
{in years)
Furniture & Fixture 10 &
Computers 3-6
Office equipments 5




Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Tangible assets held for sale is valued at lower of their carrying amount and net realizable value. Any write-down is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis method basis the life estimated by the management:

Asset class Useful fife
{in years)

Computer software 6

Leases

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases"”, applied to all lease contracts existing on
April 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Accordingly, the Company recognizes right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset is measure equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before
the date of initial application.

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the
lease term (inciuding anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an
aption to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based con the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee is classified as a

< e . s o,
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. s _‘_';1\556;;‘\\\
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Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to

each lease comporient on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at
the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset
or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any

and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-
line method from the cornmencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by [ease basis, may adopt
either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a
whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and
foss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as o lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the
lease term. In case of a finance lease,

finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on
the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in
the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short
term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

Impact of Ind AS 116:

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30™ March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices
thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets..out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires Ie,s;:q’gsi‘t‘ ‘deggunt
for alt leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases ungérind AS 17

MU A




Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Company has adopted the new standard on the required effective date using the modified retrospective
method. Accordingly, the company has not restated comparative information, instead, the right-of-use asset is
recognized at the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset is measure equal to the lease fiability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of initial application.

Impairment of non-financial assets (tangible and intangible assets)

The Company assesses Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life at each reporting date,
whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs includes interest, amortisation of ancillary cost over the period of leans, which are incurred in
connection with arrangements of borrowings.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost
and are considered as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial
period to get ready for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during
which the active development is delayed beyond reasonable time due to other than temporary interruption. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Provisions and Contingent Liability

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liabiiity is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits

e Short- term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of availing employee services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undnscountggl’/ b“uﬁr\dfﬂ
short term empioyee benefits such as salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia to be paid in exchange_o employeé

services are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. ( |




Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

¢ Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to
a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards Provident Fund and Employees State [nsurance Corporation (‘ESIC’). The contribution of these
is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the pericd in which employee renders the
related service. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the Provident Fund and
Employee State Insurance Scheme.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done as per projected unit credit method,
carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year. The Companys’gratuity benefit scheme is g defined
benefit plan.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee henefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The Company presents the leave as a
short-term provision in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional fegal and contractual
right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as long-term provision.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
correspending debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value
on initial recognition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
a. Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: -

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and
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b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal
and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount cutstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Cormnpany. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integra! part of the EIR. The EIR
amotrtisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

b. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes an the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC! to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

¢« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred the finacial assets and the transfer qualifies for dercognition under Ind AS 109.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets which are not fair valued through statement of profit and loss.
Provision for trade receivables is continued to be measured and provided for debtors exceeding 180 days from its
due date. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL. If, in a subsequent period, credit guality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment
loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recoghition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liahility are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of ouistanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated in the Cash flow statement.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented.

The number of equity shares and potentiaily dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to,ﬂﬁxiﬁﬁgugi of the
financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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{Amount in X)
2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Finance Lease
- Office Furniture & Receivable
Description . Computers ) Total . Total
Equipment fixtures {Right of Use
Assets)
Cost or Valuation
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,92,738 51,78,603 27,993,175 81,64,516 1,30,57,267 2,12,21,783
Additions 1,10,085 21,79,697 - 22,89,782 - 22,89,782
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,02,823 73,58,300 27,93,175 1,04,54,298 1,30,57,267 2,35,11,565
Additions - 69,72,979 - 69,72,979 1,30,57,267 2,00,30,24¢
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,02,823 1,43,31,279 27,93,175 1,74,27,277 2,61,14,534 4,35,41,811
Depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,77,716 26,09,675 5,21,746 33,09,137 72,54,039 1,05,63,176
Depreciation for the year 25,378 13,32,160 2,79,241 16,36,779 43,52,424 59,89,203
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,03,094 39,41,835 8,00,987 49,45,916 1,16,06,463 1,65,52,379
Depreciation for the year 59,671 27,72,185 2,79,241 31,11,108 43,52,415 74,63,526
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,62,766 67,14,030 10,80,228 80,57,024 1,59,58,882 2,40,15,905
Net Block
As at 31 March 2021 15,022 25,68,928 22,71,429 48,55,379 58,03,228 1,06,58,607
As at 31 March 2022 99,729 34,16,465 19,92,188 55,08,382 14,50,804 69,59,186
As at 31 March 2023 £0,058 76,17,249 17,12,947 93,70,253 1,01,55,652 1,95,25,905

, 3 /"\\.
( Mun!sm\'-lj
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{Amount in X)

3 Intangible assets

Computer
Description . Total

software
Balance as at 31 March 2021 9,64,532 9,64,532
Additions = i}
Disposals - -
Exchange differences - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 9,64,532 9,64,532
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Exchange differences - =
Balance as at 31 March 2023 9,64,532 9,64,532
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2021 6,29,935 6,29,935
Amortisation 1,60,681 1,60,681
Depreciation Transition impact =
Accumulated amortisation on disposals - =
Exchange differences = -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 7,90,616 7,90,616
Amortisation 85,463 85,463
Depreciation Transition impact =
Accumulated amortisation on disposals - -
Exchange differences - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 8,76,079 8,76,079
Net book value
At 31 March 2023 88,453 88,453
At 31 March 2022 1,73,916 1,73,916
At 31 March 2021 3,34,597 3,34,597
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{Amcunt in3)
Finaneizl Assets
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investments
Unquatad squity instruments (fully paid-uph
Invastmant Tn equity instruments of Companias {fully paid-up} 10 10
1 equity share of Alicargo Inland Park Private Limited of Rs 10/« each
Total nvestments b iig 16
Othar Financial assers
Non-current partion Current particn
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2003 31 March 2022
Ta oarties other than ralsted vartias
Sucuritv daposits
Unsecured. conzidersd eoad 43.95.048 48.84.764 - -
Doubtful = = o E
43.99.048 48 B4 764 - -
Less: Provision tor daubtful denosits = = o =
4305048 2383761 o -
To related parties
Unsecured, considered good - - = -
Daubtful = N N =
Total Other finencial assets 4399048 45,84,764 - -
Contract psseis
Non-currant Lurrent
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2922
Unbilled revenue b N 13,06,36,127 3,39,07,670
= - 13,06,36,127 3,89,07 670
Cther nszers.
Unsecured cansidered good, unless stoted otherwise
Men-currant Lurrant
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contractuai reimbursement expenses [Refer note, 24) - ] 2,02,757 17,73,933
G5TITC receivables = = 3,47,00,083 2,13,57,819
Deferred iease expense 319,358 i 2,398,522 89,771
Accrued intarest on Bank FD - o . 5,507
3,189,358 = ,51,42,352 2,32,27,630
Financial assets
Current investmants
31 March 2023 21 March 2022
Investmaents at feir value through PaL [fully paid)
Quoted mutual funds
ICICI Prugential Liguid Fund - Growth 49,72,047 43,10,558
Fair valua galn on MF 1,20,79% 5,23,613
50,52,245 43,34,180
Investment In Quated Instruments
Aggregate Carnying Value 50,92,845 48,34,180
Aggregate Market Value 50.592,845 48,34,180
Tatal investments 50,582,845 43,34,180
Trads racaivebies
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade recelvables
Receivables from relsted parttes (Refer note. 24) 17,56,57,162 3,50,48,349
Trade Recelvables considered good - Secured B =
Trade Receivablas considerad gaod - Unsecured 17,56,57,162 3,69,48,349

Trade Recelvables which have signiflcant increase in Credit Risk
Trade Receivables - creditimpalred

Total trade recelvables
Total Trade racaivables
No trade ar other recelvable are due from directors or other officers of the HoldIng Company either severatly or jointly with any other person.

As nt 31 March 2023

17,55,57,262 3,69,48,349

mseEme _ amae |

Gunstandnz faor follawing pariods from dus date of payment

Unbilled Current butnot.
Particulbrs Less then &

racoivabies due 6months - 1 ysar 1-2 yanrs 2-3yaars More than 3 years
months

Tota!

i Trade Receh idered good - - 17,56,57,162 - - = -

17,56,5%,162

Und[sputed Trade Recajvables — which have B _ B
sigrificant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade recefvabla — credit impaired - - - = - = E

Disputad Trade i |dered goad = - - - = = -

Disputed Trade receivables —which have significant =
increase In cradit risk

Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - g = E - g

Total - - 17,56,57,162 2 =2 EL E

17,56,57,162
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{Amount in T

Untilled e Qutstanding for following pericds from due date of paymant
Particulars Less thap 6 Tanal
recalvablys due th & months - 1 yanr| 1-Zyears 2-3yenrs ore than 3 years
months
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good E = 3,60,48,349 - = - - 3,69,48,349
Undisputed Trade Recelvables - which have B R N N . B E .
significant inereasa In credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired S 2 E ) = B E =
Disputed Trade recelvabies - considered good - - - - = = - -
Disputed Trade receivahias — which have significant - B = B - R - -
increase |n credit risk
Dlzpuled Trade receivables — cradit impaired = = = = = E - -
Total - - 3,69,38,349 - - - - 3,69,48.349
Cash and cash equivalents
31March2023 31 March 2022
cnsh and cash equivalents
Balences with banks
- On cumrent accounts 69,71,344 1,73,45,102
Fixed Deposit with Banks - 9,00,00,000
Cash on hand 2,696 36,820
69,74,040 16,73,81,922
Loans
3t March 2023 31 March 2022
To parties other than related parties
Advances ta employeas 11,55,456 20,440,015
Advances to supplier
- Considered good 362,508 3B,86,997
- Congiderad daubtful 53.053
3,82,508 39,40,050
Less: pravision for doubtful advances - (53,053}
3,62,508 28,86,597
Total Loans 15,17,964 59,27,012
Shars capital
Authorised capitzl:
Equity sharas
No Ko
At 31 March 2022 10.00.000 1.00.00.000

Incraase / {decrease) during the year
At 31, Mawch 2473

Terms/ rights attached to aquity tharas

The Company has only one class of aquity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entftled to ane vote per share. The Campany declares and pays dividends in Indan rupees. The dividend propased by
the Board of Directors is subject to the appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remazining assets of the Campany, after distribution of ali preferential amounts. The distribution will be In praportion to the number of

enuity shares held by the shareholders,

Jesued equity capital:

sesund, subscribad and fully paid-up:
At 31 March 2022

Changes during the period

At 31 hiarch 2023

(1) Betails af shareholders halding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

Nama of Shareholders
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

Alcargo Logistics Limited

Ir. Shashi kiran Shetty [ofntly with Altcargo Logistics Limited

i

(¥ Reconcifiation of aumbar of the equity sheres and praf

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year
lssuad during the periad
‘Outstanding at the end of the yaar

attha

and at the and of the ysar:

{iif} Petalls of charas kald By holding company, the ultimate holding com pany, thelr subsidiaries and assoclates:

Particulers

As st 31 Marck, 2023
Allcargo Logistlcs Limited

Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty jointly with Allcarge Logistics Limited

As at 31 March, 2022
Allcarga Loglstics Limited

Mr. Shashi KIran Shetty [ointly with Allcargs Loglstles Limited

Issued equity share capital

No Amount
52,341 5,23.410
52,341 5,23 410

—_— e

No % holding in the No % hoiding in the
dass clags

52,340 99.998% 52,340 59.898%

1 0.002% 1 Q.002%

As at 51 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Na Amount No e
52311 323,410 52,341 5,25,510
52,301 5,23,410 52,381 523,410
Compulsarity Dptianally
Fquiry sharex convertible convartble Redeemable
‘with voting rights i
shares shares
Number of shares
52,340 - R )
1
52,340 = . :
1
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As at 31 March 2023

Ecu thiternational (Asia) Pyt tad,
Notes 1o tha financlal stataments as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amaunt In T}

f <h hegl) f the % ch; duri
Sr. Particulsrs Name of No. of shares at the beginning of 1 Change during No. of shares at the and of the year | % of Total Shares ange during
na Pramnoter year the year the year
1 [Equlty shares of INR 10 each fully pald Allcargo Logistlcs 52,340 - 52,340 99 998% -
Limited
2 |Equity shares of INA 10 each fully paid Mr. Shash Kiran 1 - i 0.602% -
Shetty jointly
with Allcarge
Loglstics Limited
s at 31 March 2622
= Particulars Mameof  {No.afshares at the hegincing of the | change during |\, ot duaras at the and of the year | 5 of Total Sharas | < one: AUTnE
na Promotar year the year the year
1|Equity shares of INR 10 each fully pafd Alicargo Logistics 52,330 - 52390 29.998% -
Lim[ted
2]Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid Mr. Shashi Kiran 1 - 1 0.002% -
Shetty jointly
with Allczargo
Logisties Limited
Lease [fahikty
Non-current portion Current partion
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March2023 31 March 2022
Lease liability 62,265,292 - 42,17,070 1825071
62,26,292 = 42,1747 16,25,071

Net employes defined banafit liabiitias

Noa-current portlon

Current portion

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity {refer nate. 23i){)) 29,13,698 68,20,326 - -
Pravislon for Compensated absences 144,772,771 1,10,49,202 37.88.483 21,15,138
1,73,91.469 1,78,78,528 27,588,463 21,15138
Trads payables
31 Mazch 2023 31 March 2022
Total ouistanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refes note. 26) - -
Total outstanding dues of credlftors other than micra enterprises and small enterprises 1,41,82,936 84,99,350
Trade payables to relatad partias jrafer nate. 24} 4,742,118 83,32 420
6/16,22,115 1,68,31,830
As ar 31 March 2023
[r— nbilled payales Cutrent but not Qutstanding for following pariods from dua date of payment Total
dus Loss than L year 1-2years 2. 3years Mora than 3 years
I Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises - - - - - - 3
I Total aulstanding duss of creditors other than micro entarprises and - ] 6,15,12,574 - 9541 - 6,16,22,115
small enterprises
Disputed duas of micro enterprisas and small enterprises B 5 F B = E n
Disputed dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small = = ¥ S L = e
Total - - 6,16,13,574 - 9,541 - 6,16,22,115
Ac at 31 March 292
» Current s ot Qutstanding for following paricds from due date of payment
Partlculars Unbilfed payabl L
I dus 1235 than 1 year 1-2yaars 2-3years | Mora than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises. - - - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - 3 1,68,21,608 10,221 S 3 1,66,31,830
small
Disputed dues of mitra ehterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputad dues of creditars ather than micre antarprises and small - - - - - - -
Total - - 1,68, 21,609 10,221 - - 1,68,31,830
Gther liabilities
Noh-eurrant portion Current gortion
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31Morch 2023 31 March 2022
Employee benefits payable - - 26,33,285 60,45,297
Statutary dues payable = = 10101194 60,590,589
Gther payables (rafar note. 24) 23,19,75,555 10,76,63,547
o - 24,07,10,034 11,97,59,853
Other payables
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Brovislon for expenses 5,86,22 302 2,76,B2,040

3,86,22,502 2,76,82,040
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{Amount in T}

13 Income Faxes

13a. Non-current tax Assets lnEl

13b, Deferred tax:

Deferred tax relates ta the following:

Balance Sheet

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Particulars
Advance tax recoverable (net of provision for tax} 15,88,074 14,97,884
16,88,074 14,97,834
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2022:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations £,33,47,963 1,24,14,470
Profit/(loss) befare tax from a discontinued operation - -
Accaunting profit before income tax 4,33,47,863 1,24,14,470
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% {31 March 2022 25 168%}
Computed tax expenses 1,09,09, 790 31,24,474
Expanses disallowed for tax purpose - -
Impact of change in tax rate - -
Expenses not allowed in previous years but allowed in current year = =
OCl Gratuity [5,71,288) (9.46,716)
Allewance of Mtual fund gains in PGBP (1,66,481} -
LTCG on Mutaal funds at 20% 8015 i
Adjustments relating to taxes reversal of earlier years 1,931,330 (27,857)
Others impacts = E
At the effective income tax rate of 23,93% (31 March 2022: 17.32%} 1,03,7,367 71,49,901
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,03,71,367 21,49,301
(o} (0}

Profitand Loss

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accelerated depreciation far tax purposes (27,41,544) 4,37.311) 23,0,733 {11,14,763)
Fair Valuation en Investments (30,402) (1,31,783) {1,01,380) 39,243
Leave Encashment 43,45,566 33,13,201 [10,32,365) {15,61,088)
Gperating lease liability IND AS 26,2%,385 4,0899% (22,19,387) 11,58,035
Falr valuation of financial instruments 3,629 (2,551) (4,180) 4,436
Deferred tax expense/f{income) {10,53,079) §14,74,137)
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 42,03,633 31,50,554
MAT Credit entitlement 0 3
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 42,03,633 31,50,554
Recanciliation of deferred tax assets/(liahifities) (net)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance as of 1 April 31,50,554 16,76,417
Tax income/{expanse) during the period recognised in profit or loss {10,53,079) 14,74,137)
Closing balance as at 31 March 42,03,633 31,50,554

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and anly if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax Habilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities refate to income taxes levied by the same tox authority.

13b. Current Tax Liability
Particulars

Tax Liabtlity [ret)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022




Ecu International (Asia} Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in X)

14

15

16

17

Revenue from operations

Other operating revenue
Business support charges

Total revenue

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

34,41,54,524

22,17,08,433

34,41,54,524

22,17,08,433

Other income

Other non-operating income

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Miscellaneous income 13,92,423 12,49,150
Excess Provision written back - LTA - 3,35,848
Interest on Deposits 412,157 6,507
Fair value (loss}/gain on investments (4,02,815) 1,55,926
Interest income on tax refund 67,962 -
Gain on sale of investments 6,61,479 -
Interest on loan given to Employee 1,743 -
Notional interest income on financial instrument 2,32,849 2,86,948
23,65,799 20,34,379

Employee benefits expense

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 27,07,49,813 16,76,12,485
Contributions to provident and other funds {refer note 23(ii)) 1,62,94,443 94,76,496
Staff welfare expenses 1,27,457 20,55,152
Compensated absences 89,13,269 75,95,218
Gratuity expense {refer note 23(i){e}) 35,85,682 18,67,210

29,96,70,664 18,86,06,561
Depreciation and amortisation
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 2) 74,63,527 59,89,203
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 3) 85,463 1,60,681
75,48,990 61,49,884




18

19

20

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Finance costs

Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.

{Amount in X)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense
Notional Interest Expense on lease obligations 7,25,424 3,63,177
Notional interest expense on financial instrument 2,49,456 2,69,324
9,74,879 6,32,501
Other expenses
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Legal and professional fees 9,99,704 1,13,49,992
Repairs to building and others 1,60,226 -
Printing and stationery 31,706 -
Communication charges 7,185
Rates and taxes 2,37,973 2,500
Office expenses 7,38,496 1,45,463
Payment to auditors (Refer note below) 1,25,000 85,000
Insurance 33,038 15,307
Bank charges 2,224 -
Membership and subscription 1,180 607
Bad debts/advances written off - 38,822
Forex exchange gain/loss (net) 4,58,838 42,96,096
Travelling expenses 13,016 5,608
28,08,586 1,59,39,396
Exceptional items
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of SEIS scripts {78,30,660) -
{78,30,660) -
Note:
Payments to the auditor: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor
Audit fee 66,000 50,000
Tax audit fee T 59,000 35,000
! O VAN 1,25,000 85,000
i REYT3])
A /:}
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Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Components of Other Comprehensive Income

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

Moduane  fosmae el o
INR INR INR INR
During the year ended 31 March 2023
Foreign exchange translation differences - = = -
Reclassified to statement of profit or loss - = S =
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets = - - -
Re-measurement gains {losses) on defined henefit plans - - [22,69,898) -
- - (22,69,898) -
During the year ended 31 March 2022
Foreign exchange translation differences - - - m
Reclassified to statement of profit or foss - - - .
Gain/(loss} on FVTOCI financial assets - S - =
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans - - {37,61,586) -
g - [37,61,586) -

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible
preference shares, if any) by the weighted average number of Equity shares autstanding during the year plus the weighted average numher of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The foltowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity holders:

Continuing operations 3,29,76,496 1,02,64,569
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings: 3,25,76,496 1,02,64,569
Weighted average number of Equity shares faor basic EPS 52,341 52,341
Basic and diluted EPS 630.03 196.11




Ecu International {Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes ta the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

23 {i} Defined Benefit Plans
In accordance with local laws, the Company provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible emplayees in India. The plan provides for a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in empleyment or on termination of employment. The present value of the defined benafit cbligation and the
related current service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valration being carried out at each balance sheet date.

The following table sets out the funded as wel! as unfunded status of the retirement benefit plans and the amounts recognised in Financial statements: -

(a} Change in the defined benefit obligation
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Defined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year endd 1,99,77,430 1,23,77,340
Service Cast
a. Current service cost 32,13,432 16,61,503
b, Past service cost - -
Interest Cost 12,53,177 7,34,767
Benefit payments directly by employer (27.87,119) {5,11,462)
Acquisition / Divestiture {1,54,763) 17,11,293
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Di phic Assumptions - -
Actuarial (Gain} / Loss - Financial Assumptions {8.25,398] (4,33,721)
Actuaria) {Gain} / Loss - Experience 35,42,886 44,36,670
Defined Benefit Obfigation as of Current Year 2,42,19,705 1,9%,77,490

{b} Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Farticulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 1,31,48,162 84,04,134
£ d Return on Plan Assets #,80,927 5,29.460
Employer contributions 68,29,326 39,73,205
Actjuisition / Divestiture - -
Actuariz| Gain/{Loss) on Plan Assets 4,47,591 2,41,363
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 2,13,06,006 1,31,48,162

{c) Net Defined Benefit Asset / {Liability)
Particutars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22|
Defined Benefit Obligaticn 2,421,705 1,99,77.450
Fair value of Plan Assets 2,13,06,006 1,3%,48,162
Surplus [ (Deficit) 29,13,699 68,239,328
Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) 29,13,699 68,29,328

{d} Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheet

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Net defined benefit llability (asset} at prior year end 68,29,328 39,73,206
Defined benefit cost included i P&L 35,85,682 18,67,210
Tatal remeasurements included in GCI 22,569,898 37,61,586
Acguisition / Divestiture (1,54,763) 17,11,992
Empioyer contributions {68,29,326) (38,73,205}
Direct benefit payments by Employer {27,87,119) (5,11,462}
Net defined benefit fizbility {asset] - end of period 249,131,700 68,29,328
{e} Exp Recognlsed in the of Profit & Loss Account

[Partieatars 21-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Service cost

a) Current service cost 32,13,432 16,61,903
b} Past service cost

Total service cost 32,13,432 15,651,303
a) Interast on DBO 12,53,177 7,34,767
b) Interest (income) on plan assets (8,80,927) 15,29,460]
Total net interest cost 3,72,250 2,05,307
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 35,85,682 18,67,210

{fi Remeasurement Effects Recognized in Qther Comprehensive Income {OC1)

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
a. Actuarial {Gain) / Loss due to Demographic Assumption changes in DBO = o
b. Actuarial {Gain] / Loss due to Financial Assumption changes in DBO (8,25,398) (4,33,721)
. Actuarial [Gain) / Loss due to Experience on DBO 35,42,886 44,36,670:
d.Return oh Plan Assets [Greatet) f Less than Discount rata (4,47,591) -2,41,363
e. Changes in asset ceiling = -
F- Total Actuarial {Gain)/Loss included in OCI 22,69,897 37,61,586
{g) Total Cost Recognised in Comprehensive income
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Lost Recognised in PAL 35,85,682 18,67,210,
Remeasuremenis Effects Recognised in OCI 22,69,898 37,61,586
Total Cost Recognised in G f Incame 58,55,580 56,28,796
{h) Reconcilistion of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Farticulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 ey 5
Cumulative OCI - (Income}/Exp Seginning of Period 59,39,90% 21,782,323 Jh e A,
Total rer urements included in OCI 22,69,898 37,561,586

Curnulative GCI - {Income)/Expanse, End of Periad 82,09,807 59,395,909 i { ERirass \




Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

(i} Current / Non Current Liability

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Current Liability - -
Non Current Liabifity 29,13,69% 68,29,327
Non Current asset 2 &
Total 29,13,699 68,29,327
() Expected Future Cashflows
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Year 1 33,70,074 2546,722
Year 2 44,20,929 75,96,572
Year 2 39,86,196 3169372
Year 4 23,57,899 32,24,488
Year 5 24,05,443 22,27.3174
Years & to 10 1,02,27,280 75,56,572
(k) Sensitivity Analysis
0104-22 D1-04-21
Defined Benefit Obligation to to
31-03-23 31-03-22

Discount rate
a. Discount rate - 100 basis points 2,55,13,08¢ 2,10,86,950
a. Discount rate - 100 basis points impact (%) 5.34% 5.60%
b. Discount rate + 100 basis points 2,30,50,992 1,89,67,865
b, Discount rate + 100 basis points impact (%] 4.83% -5.05%
Salary increase rate
a. Rate - 100 basjs points 2,32,28,316 1,91,81,307
a. Rate - 100 basis points irmpact (%) 4.09% -3.94%
b. Rate + 100 basis points 2,52,41,143 2,07,86,586
b. Rate -+ 100 hasis points impact (3] 4.22% 4.05%
Attrition rate
a. Rate - 100 basis points 2,42,29,491 2,00,30,217
a. Rate - 100 basis points impact (%] 0.04% 0.76%
b. Rate + 100 basis points 2,42,04,042 1,95,24,092
b, Rate + 100 basis points Impact {%) -0.06% 0.27%
Assumptions
Financial A ot

01/08/2022 1o 31/03/2023 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022
Discount rate 7.35% 6.70%
Basic salaty increases alfowing for ragular increases/price inflation/promotional| 5% for first year, 8% thereafter 59 for first year, 8% thereafter
increases
Expected rate of return on assets MN.&
Demographic Ass

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Mortality Rate™ 1ALM (2012-14) Ukimate IALM [2012-14) Ultimate
Service Based: Service Based:
Withdrawal rate Service <= 4 years: 19% p.a. Service <= 4 years: 19% p.a.
Service > 4 years: 14% p.a. Service » 4 years: 14% p.a.
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Discount rate
The discount rate used is determined by reference to the market vields at the balance sheet date on the government bands in accordance with paragraph 83 of the IND AS
15,
Source - https:/fwww. fimmda.org/
Salary Escalation rate
The estimates of future salary, takes into account regular increases price inflation, promotional increases and other relevant fatcors if applicable.
23{ii} Defined Contribution Plans

For the year company has contributed an amount of Rs. 1,62,94,443/- (31 March 2021 : Rs. 94,76,496/~) toward provident funds, ESIC and other funds which Is

recognised as an expense and included Contribution to Provident & Other Funds” Under " Employee benefits expense” In the statement of Profit and Loss.

in




24 Related party transactions

Ecu International {Asia) Pvt. Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Holding Company
Allecargo Logistics Limited

Il. Fellow subsidiaries

Prism Global Limited

Allcargo inland Park Private Limited
Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited

1il. Key managerial personnel
Mr. Adarsh Sudhzkar Hegde
Mr. Ravi Jakhar

Mr. Saleem Mohamed Nazir Mohamed Husein

V. Relatives of Key Management Persannel

Mr. Vaishnav Shetty (Son of Chairman)

s over which key managerial personnel or their relative’s exercises significant influence

Summary of transactions with related parties:

Relatives of Key Management

Holding Fellow Subsidiary Fellow Subsidiary Personnel
Allcargo Logistics Ltd Prism Global Ltd. Supply Chai Vaishnav Shet |
Sr. No. Nature of Transaction E g b__nw_..mo :_w_... < Chain W pLE
Private Limited
31st March 23 31st March 22 | 31st March 23 31st March 22 | 31st March 23 st March { 31st March 23  31st March 22 | 31st March 23 31st March 22
A) P&.L Related
a |Business Support Charges - Income - - 34,00,82,640  21,89,50,594 - - - - 34,09,82,640 21,89,50,594
b |Business Support Charges - Expenses 21,49,26,477 11,37,33,013 - - - - - - 21,49,26,477 11,37,33,013
b |Reimbursable Expenses - - 57,22,07,253 19,58,19,418 - - 19,44,589 15,386,444 57,41,51,842 19,74,05,862
¢ |Salary Expenses - - - - - - 28,42,392 29,42,352 28,42,392 29,42,352
B) Balance sheet Related
a |Trade Receivahle - - 17,56,57,162 3,69,48,345 - - - - 17,56,57,162 3,69,48,349
b |Trade payable 4,74,29,119 83,32,497 - - - - - - 4,74,29,119 83,322,497
t |Other Receivable - 17,73,533 - - 2,02,757 - - - 2,02,757 17,73,533
d |Other Receivable for foreign currency - - - - - - - - - -
e |Other payable - - 22,19,75,555  10,76,63,547 - - - - ,76,63,547
f Gratuity Liabilty - - - - - - - 3,06,775 %m_uqm

NG
NS

——

e

ACCOS




Ecu Internatlonal {Asia) Pvt. Ltd.
Nates to the financial statements as zt and far the year ended 31 March 2023

25 Lommitments and contingencies

{a)

L]

[e}

[d}

(=l

ELd

Follewing are the changes in the carmying valire of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Particulars Category of ROU Assets
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Gross block of ROU assst 261,714,534 1,3057.267
Accumulated Cegreciation [1,59,58,282} (1,16,05,463)
M=t Balances 1,01,55,652 14,50,804

The followlng is the break-up of current and non-current fease liabilities as at March 3%, 2023

As at 31 March | Asat 31 March

Particulars 073 2022
Currant |eese liabilities 42,17,070 16,25071
Non-Current laase liabillties 62,26,292 -
Net Balances 1,04.43,362 16,25071
The following is the in lease liabilities during year ended March 31, 2023

Asat 31 March | Asat 31 March
Particulars

2623 2027

Opening Balances 16,25,071 62,26,292
Additions during the year 1,30,57,267 -
Finance cost accrued during the year 725424 3,63,179
Leasa payments made during the year (49,684,400} (49,64,400)
Closing as on 31.3.23 1,0d,43,362 16,25,071
The tabile below provides details regarding the l of lease ilities as at March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted bass:

Asat 31 March | Asat 31 March

Particulars
2023 2022
'Within 1year 49 64, 400 16,54,300
Between 1 ta 5 years 62,26,292 -
Mora than 5 years. - -
The company dees not face a significart {iquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient ta meeat the f related to lease liabilities as and when they fall

due,

Ko rantal expenses recagnised for shart tarm teases for the year ended March 31, 2023.

a. Pues to Micro and small enterprises

Under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {[MSMED) which came into foree from D2 Qctober 2006, certain disclosures are required 1o be made refating to MSME.
Cn the basis of the information and records avatlable with the Company, the following disclosures are made for the amounts dee fo the Micro 2nd Small Enterprises.

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2072

Principal amount remalning unpaid to any supplier as at the period end. NIL NI

Interest due thereon NIL NIL

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED, along with the

amaunt of the payment made ta the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting NIL NI

period.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have

heen paid but beyond the appointed day during the peried) but without adding the interest NIL NiL

specified under the MSMED.

Amaount of interest accrued and remaining vnpaid at the end of the accounting period

HIL NiL

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the HIL NIL

purpose of disallowancas as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006
b. Earnings in Foreign Currency 31 March 2023 35 March 2022

Revenue from operations

- Business support charges 34,09,82,640 21,8%,50,594
- Reimbursement of expenses 57,22,07,253 19,58,19,418

91,31,89,893 41,47,70,012

AL




Note 27 : Ratio Analysis

Ratio
Ll_ia_ Nurmerator Denominator 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22|% Change  |Resson for variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.13 1.26 -6%| N.A as variance less than 25%
Debt - Equity mtio Total Dabt Shareholder's Equity NA NA
Debt service coverage ratic Earnings for debt sarvice = Debt service = NA NA
Net profit after taxes + Non-cash  [interest & Lease Payments +
operaiing expanses Principal Repayments
Return an Equity ratio Met Profits after taxes — Preference |Average Shareholder’s Eguity 057 0.26 119%|Increase in revenua gradually over the vears,
Dividend
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory NA NA
Trade Receivables turnaver ratic | Net credit sales = Gross credit sales | Average Trade Receivable 3.24 8.69 -63% | Dacrease in ratio an account of increase In
sales return recaivables from Prism Giobal Limited, unlike in
previous year.
Trade payables turnover ratic Net credit purchases = Gross credit | Average Trade Payables NA NA
purchases - purchase return
Net capital turnover ratia Net sales = Total sales - sales return | Working capital = Current assets ~ 5.13 5.0z 2% |N.A as variance less than 25%
Current liabilities
Net profit ratic Net Profit Net sales = Tatal sales - sales 9.58% 4.63% 107% |Increase in ratio on account of increase in sales,
return employee benafit expanses and decresse in other
expenses.
Return on Capital employed Ezrnings before interest and taxes |Capital Employed = Tangible Net 46.92% 28.40% 65% |increase in ratio on account of increase overal!
Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Fax earnings in current year unlike in previous year.
Liakility
Return on Investment interest {(Finance Income} investment 5.20% 3.62% 44% |Increase is on account of gain an sale of investments
net of FY {gss on investments held as at 31 March
2023, unlike in PY where there was just a fair value
lgain.




28 {i) Capital

e

Ectt International {Asla} Put. Ltd.
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2023

For the purpose of the Company's cepital management, capital includes issued equity capita), securities premium and all other equity reservas attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in Fght of changas in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financtal covenants, The funding requirement s met through a mixture of equity, internal aceruals, feng term borrowings and short term berrowings.

{ii} Financial Risk

a. Trade receivables

Quistanding customer recelvables are regularly monitored and impairment anzlysis is performed at each reporting date on an ndividual basis.

b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be zble to settle or meet its obligations on time arata ble price. Mar i the
Company's net liquidity pesition through ferecasts on the basis of monthly business perfermance and cashflows.

Fair value Hierarchy :-

The Company uses the followlng hi hy Far de fning and discioslng the falr vatue of financdial | by valuatl hnigue:

Level 1: quoted [unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other technigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant 2ffzct on the recorded fair value that are not based en observable market data

The folfowing tables provides the O irative discl af fair value hl iy of respective reporting periods -
Total Fair Valtre
Quoted Price in Significant Sipnificant
31-Mar-23 active market Observable unobservable inputs
Finandal Investments
Quoted Investments - Mutual Funds 50,52,845 50,92,845 - -
Total Financial Assets measured at Fair Value 50,927,345 50,92,845 - -
Taotal Falr Vatue
Quoted Price in Significant Signiflcant
31-Mar-22 active market Ohservable unchservable inputs
Financlal Investments
Quoted Investments - Mutual Funds 48,34,180 485,34,180 - -
Tota] Financial Assets measured at Fair Value AE,34,180 48,345,180 - -
Fair Value
Total
Quoted Price in Significant Slgnificant
active market Observable anobservable inputs
31-Mar-21 {Level 1) Inputs {Level 2) (fevel 3)
Financfal Investments
‘Quoted investments - Mutual Funds 46,78, 255 46,78,255 - -
Total Financial Assets measured at Fair Value 46,785,255 45,78,255 = B
The mznagement assessed that the cash and cash ivalents, trade bles, trade payables and other current liabilith p d & their carrying

fargely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

Financial assets as at 31 March 2022 are Rs. 19,36,41,070 (31 March 2022: Rs. 15,99,76,238} which includes trade receivables, shart term loans, cash and cash
equivalents, other bank balances and other financial assets.

Financlal ffabilities as at 31 March 2023 are Rs. 11,06,87,778 {31 March 2022: Rs. 4,61,38,941 } which includes trade payables, other payahles and other financtal
liabilities,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities Is included at the ameunt at which the instrument could be exchanged it a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidaticn sale.

30 Prior year comparatives

IPreviuus years figures have been rouped or rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classi ion / disclosure.
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